
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
The Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Beds LU7 1HD 

24 June 2022 
 
To:  Members of the Personnel Sub Committee (Councillors A Dodwell, D Bowater, 
K Cursons, S Jones, R Goodchild and D Scott) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Personnel Sub Committee to be 
held on Monday, 4 July 2022 commencing at 7.30 pm in the The Council Chamber, 
The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, 
Beds LU7 1HD.  

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

2.   ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR 2022-23  

 

3.   ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR FOR 2022-23  

 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  

 
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 

the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure). 

 

5.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 

MINUTES)  

 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


PERSONNEL SUB COMMITTEE Monday, 4 July 2022 
 

 

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3(f) and 3(g). 
 

6.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 2) 

 

 (a) To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the 
Committee meeting held on 27 April 2022 (attached) in accordance with 
Standing Order 12. 
(b) To receive information updates on matters arising from the previous 
meeting (if appropriate). 
 

7.   DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 3 - 6) 

 

 To receive and formally note the delegated decisions taken with email approval 
from committee members in March and April 2022, in accordance with 
Standing Order 15 (c) (vii) (attached). 
 

8.   TRAINING POLICY REVIEW (Pages 7 - 18) 

 

 Committee previously agreed the review of several policies during 2022-23. To 
receive and consider updated and separate Learning & Development Policies 
for Employees and for Councillors (current combined policy and both proposed 
new policies attached) for recommendation to Policy & Finance Committee. 
 

9.   TOWN CLERK'S APPRAISAL  

 

 In accordance with the terms of reference, to appoint a panel of three 
Councillors and agree a date to undertake the Town Clerk’s annual 
performance appraisal for 2022. 
 

10.   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  

 

 The Sub-Committee may consider it appropriate to consider the following 
resolution should they consider that any discussion would be prejudicial to the 
public interests: that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act 
1960, the public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential nature of the 
business about to be transacted which involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information. The public and press to withdraw from the meeting during 
consideration of detailed discussion regarding:    
 

11.   STAFFING MATTERS (VERBAL UPDATE)  

 
* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



Page 29 

LEIGHTON–LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES OF PERSONNEL SUB COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY, 27 APRIL 2022 AT 1.00 PM 
 

Present:   Councillors S Jones 
D Bowater  
A Dodwell (Chair) 
S Owen (substituting for R Goodchild) 
K Cursons 

 
Also in attendance: M Saccoccio, Town Clerk 

S Sandiford, Deputy Town Clerk 
G Morgan (Luton Borough Council) 
Cllr F Kharawala 

  
 
Members of the public: 0 
Members of the press 0 

 
88/PR APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor D Scott and from 

Councillor R Goodchild (substituted by Councillor S Owen).  
 

89/PR DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 No declarations were made or dispensations requested.  
 

90/PR QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 minutes per person; maximum 15 
minutes) 
 

 No members of the public were present.  
  
 

91/PR EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 RESOLVED that, under the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) Act 
1960, the public be excluded on the grounds of the confidential nature 
of the business about to be transacted which involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information.  The public and press to withdraw 
from the meeting during consideration of detailed discussion regarding 
staffing matters.  
 

92/PR STAFFING MATTERS 
 

 The Sub-Committee received a report in respect of the resignation of a 
member of staff and gave consideration to both short-term interim 
arrangements as well as longer term permanent recruitment to the role.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



Personnel Sub Committee Meeting Wednesday, 27 April 2022 
 

 

Page 30 

 
It was noted that it would not be possible to achieve permanent recruitment 
prior to the postholder’s departure and agreed that an interim period of up to 
six months seemed likely. It was agreed that permanent recruitment to the 
role could not be rushed as it was imperative that the job description was up 
to date and that the right candidate could be found for such a key position.  
 
Arrangements for the intervening period were considered and concerns were 
expressed for potential impact on senior officers as well as the potential for 
delays in projects. After discussion it was agreed that an interim temporary 
appointment should be sought, for up to six months. However, it was 
recognised that additional measures might be required to ensure business 
continuity in any intervening period between the postholder’s departure and 
the recruitment to an interim position. To cover key tasks in any such 
intervening period, options including sharing responsibilities amongst existing 
staff, recruitment of temporary staff and use of specialist contractors were 
discussed as possible options.  
 
The Sub-Committee expressed support for existing staff and concern that 
employees not be overloaded with additional work. It was agreed that any 
additional hours or responsibilities should receive appropriate recompense in 
accordance with the Council’s employment policies.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

(i) To express thanks and appreciation to the departing employee 
for her hard work, particularly in taking on tasks and projects 
outside the scope of her substantive workload.  

(ii) To delegate to the Town Clerk authority to finalise the specific 
wording to encapsulate the discussion of the Sub-Committee, 
with email approval from councillors, in accordance with the 
delegated procedure set out at Standing Order 15 (c).  

  
 

 
The meeting closed at 2.00 pm.  
 
I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 27 APRIL 2022.  
 
 
 
 
Chair                                                 4 JULY 2022  

Page 2



RECORD OF APPROVED DECISIONS 

Personnel Sub-Committee   March 2022 

Below is a record of decisions delegated to the Town Clerk during the specified period, with email approval by Councillors, in 

accordance with the procedure set out at Standing Order 15 (c)  

Date 
requested 

Subject Specific agreed decision Agreed by Cllrs 

29 March 
2022 

Personnel matters 1) Staffing policies review: to note that 12 policies have been 
reviewed by the Council’s Human Resources provider since 
2020 and that the next four documents for review will be: 
Employee handbook, Organisational change policy, 
Whistleblowing procedure and staff & councillor training 
policy (all date from 2015).  

2) To note the organisational health report provided following 
recent employee health checks and to endorse expenditure of 
£495 from budget code 4383/12 for the purchase of four 
webinars to provide further guidance on four specific areas 
identified in the health checks. 

3) To endorse that from 1 April 2022, any Covid related sickness 
absence should be recorded and processed in accordance 
with the Council’s Sickness Absence Procedure, as 
recommended by Luton Borough Council and in line with 
national guidelines relating to Covid-19.  As with all sickness 
absence, employees will be provided support through 
Occupational Health should this be required.  

4) To note that the Employee Assistance programme has 
received no calls but 35 visits to the web portal over the last 
12 months. 

5) To provide further support to employees by investing in an 
online wellbeing platform and an online mental health/stress 
management platform for 12 months, with its value to be 
assessed later in 2022. Costs of £995 per platform to be met 

Approved by 4 out of 6 
members of Sub 
Committee 

P
age 3

A
genda Item

 7



from budgets 4007/12 (health checks) and 4383/12 (health 
and safety). The platforms will allow people to complete a 
survey to determine their wellbeing/pressure status as 
frequently as they wish and to access a library of resources to 
help self-manage any areas of concern.  

6) To support the recommendations made in the report 
presented to committee:  To make the current fixed-term 
contract for the position of Cultural and Economic Support 
Officer (Markets) a permanent position, with the salary and 
on-costs to be met from the existing Market Service Cost 
Centre budget.  

 

 

 P
age 4



RECORD OF APPROVED DECISIONS 

Personnel Sub-Committee   April 2022 

Below is a record of decisions delegated to the Town Clerk during the specified period, with email approval by Councillors, in 

accordance with the procedure set out at Standing Order 15 (c)  

Date 
requested 

Subject Specific agreed decision Agreed by Cllrs 

3 May 2022   Personnel matters – 
following discussion at 
the Personnel Sub-
Committee meeting held 
27 April 2022 

Interim cover 
i) That the existing Job Description for Head of Cultural and 

Economic Services be reviewed to create a basis to advertise 
for an interim manager on a fixed term contract for up to six 
months  

ii) To advertise the interim vacancy as soon as practicable both 
directly and indirectly (i.e. through recruitment agencies), 
with any costs for advertising or agency fees to be met from 
the HR Consultancy earmarked reserve 920/9030 (up to a 
maximum of £1,500).   

iii) Salary cost for an interim manager to be met from the 
Salaries revenue budget for the substantive role 

iv) That in any intervening period between the departure of the 
current postholder and the commencement of an interim 
manager, the following arrangements be put in place to 
ensure business continuity, following discussion and 
agreement between the Town Clerk and the Chair of the 
Personnel Sub-Committee: 
  
a) To seek the support of an external consultant on a day 

rate basis to work on specific and appropriate work 
streams (any costs to be met from the HR Consultancy 
earmarked reserve 920/9030). 

b) The sharing of line management and service 
management responsibilities between existing managers 

Approved by 5 out of 6 
members of Sub 
Committee 

P
age 5



based on capacity and individual areas of 
strength/expertise. 

c) Where appropriate, to support managers by seeking 
additional hours from either existing employees or 
temporary external resources, to backfill certain tasks as 
appropriate. 

d) Costs arising from additional hours or responsibilities as 
set out in b) and c) above to be met from the Salary 
revenue budget for the substantive role.  

  
Permanent recruitment 
v) That the existing Job Description for Head of Cultural and 

Economic Services be reviewed and externally evaluated by 
Luton Borough Council in accordance with the National Joint 
Council criteria, noting that this in turn may lead to the 
amendment and possible re-evaluation of other substantive 
Job Descriptions. 

vi) To seek to secure the services of a recruitment consultant to 
support the appointment process 

vii) That any costs arising from the advertising and recruitment 
process be met from the HR Consultancy earmarked reserve 
920/9030 (up to a maximum a maximum of £6,000).  

viii) That following approval by the Personnel Sub-Committee of 
steps iv) and v) above, the recruitment process for a 
permanent position be commenced as soon as practicable.  

ix) That the Chair of the Personnel Sub-Committee form part of 
the appointment panel for the permanent recruitment to the 
role.  

 

 

 

P
age 6



 
 

 
 

TRAINING POLICY 
 

1 Introduction 
 
1.1 Leighton-Linslade Town Council is an organisation in which learning is 

valued.  Members and staff will be supported to undertake the training and 
development which they need to help them achieve and maintain a high 
standard of performance and all will be given encouragement and support 
to achieve their full potential.  This will allow them to provide a proper level 
of service to the people of Leighton Buzzard and Linslade. 

 
2 Staff and Councillors are entitled to  
 

 Equality of opportunity in all aspects of their development. 

 An induction programme into their own roles as well as to the workings 
of Leighton-Linslade Town Council. 

 An understanding of the direction and objectives of the Council. 

 An understanding of the contribution that is expected of them. 
  
For Staff 
 

 Clear and measurable objectives for their performance at work. 

 An annual review of their performance, role and training needs. 

 A personal development plan which addresses their development 
needs. 

 Records of training needs and training undertaken will be maintained as 
part of individual personal records. 

 A Town Mayor, Leader and Town Clerk who are committed to staff 
development. 

 Paid release from work commitments in order to undertake relevant 
training. 

 Training and certification in accordance with all legal and statutory 
requirements according to their role and equipment under their control. 
Where appropriate training will be linked to external standards e.g. 
NVQ’s. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



[Type here] 
 

For Councillors 
 

 General training in parish council level matters e.g.  
 

o Duties of a councillor 
o Code of Conduct 
 

 Specialist training according to need and role in the Council and 
Committees 

 
o Chairmanship 
o IT 
o Planning 
 

3 Resources 
 

Appropriate sums will be made available in each budgetary period to allow 
required training to take place.  

 
4 Main Training Providers 
 

 Bedfordshire Association of Town and Parish Councils 

 National Association of Local Councils 

 Society of Local Council Clerks 

 Institute of Cemetery and Crematorium Management 

 Central Bedfordshire Council 

 Shuttleworth College 

 Luton Borough Council 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Adopted by Council 28 September 2015  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 8



 
 

COUNCILLOR LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT POLICY 
Adopted by Council 25th September 2015 

Reviewed July 2022 
 

1 Introduction 
 
1.1 Leighton-Linslade Town Council is an organisation in which learning is 

valued.  Members and staff will be supported to undertake the training and 
development which they need to help them achieve and maintain a high 
standard of performance and all will be given encouragement and support 
to achieve their full potential.  This will allow them to provide a proper level 
of service to the people of Leighton Buzzard and Linslade. 

 
2 Councillor Induction 
 
2.1 The Town Council will offer induction information and training to all new 

town councillors after their election or co-option onto the council. 
 

2.2 A new councillor information pack will be provided which will contain 
essential documentation such as: 

 

 Contact details for staff 

 Organisation structure 

 Committee structure 

 Calendar of meetings 

 Code of Conduct and Dispensations procedure 

 Standing Orders 

 Financial Regulations 

 Budget for current financial year 

 Relevant policies such as the Councillor/Officer Protocol 
 

2.3 After each four-yearly local election, the new Council members will be 
offered induction training which is likely to include: 
 

 An introduction to the legal framework governing parish councils (i.e. 
legal powers and duties) 

 An introduction to Town Council operations, activities, objectives and 
services 

 An introduction to Town Council finances 

 An overview of staffing 

 An introduction to standing committees and current year work plan 

 An overview of how formal Council/committee meetings operate 
 

2.4 Councillors who join at another time, for example after a by-election or co-
option, will be offered one-to-one induction training and support as they 
commence their role.  

Page 9



 
 

2.5 All new councillors will receive training on the use of any appropriate 
Council software, for example meeting management software or Council 
email accounts.  
 

2.6 Councillors using Town Council owned devices will receive training on the 
use and care of devices. 
 
 

3. Specialist training 
 
3.1 Where possible and practicable, specialist training will be provided to build 

councillor knowledge in specific areas. This could include for example: 
 

 Code of conduct 

 Planning 

 Data protection 

 Climate emergency 

 Use of social media 
 

3.2 Specialist training may be provided in several ways such as: 
 

 In-house training by officers 

 Training by third parties, in person or online 

 Access to online training modules 

 Access to online webinars 

 Sector specific training, led by the Bedfordshire Association of Town 
and Parish Councils or the National Association of Local Councils 

 
3.3 Specialist training will include the provision of specific Chairmanship 

knowledge and skills training, available to all elected Chairs and Vice Chairs 
of the Council, its committees, sub-committees, Task and Finish Groups or 
working parties. Chairmanship training is optional but highly recommended 
as it requires a degree of familiarity with Standing Orders as well as other 
relevant policies and procedures. Chairmanship training will ordinarily be 
offered at the start of each municipal year (May/June).  

 
3.4 Availability, format and provider of training may depend upon available 

budget. At present there is no specific budget line for councillor training but 
there may be scope to meet reasonable costs from other budget lines.  
 

 
4 Ongoing councillor support  
 
4.1  Individuals or groups of councillors may request repeated or additional 

training throughout their term of office, to meet individual or collective 
learning needs.  

 

Page 10



 
 

4.2 Should any changes to elected Chairmanships take place mid-year, training 
can be made available to any newly elected Chair or Vice-Chair upon 
request.  

 
4.3 At any time, councillors may seek guidance from officers in respect of 

access to Council documents or other sources of advice/information to 
assist them in the performance of their role.  Information will be provided 
subject to any caveats as set out in the Council’s information management, 
data protection or other applicable policies.  

 
4.4 Councillors may expect that when asked to make decisions at meetings of 

Council/committees, they will be provided with relevant background 
information, legal or policy context and budgetary considerations in order 
to fulfil their role fully.  

 
4.5 Meeting papers will, whenever possible, be published/circulated with 

meeting agendas approximately 10 days in advance of a scheduled 
meeting, allowing sufficient time for careful consideration and to raise any 
questions or requests for additional information in advance of the meeting.  

 
4.6 Officers will endeavour to provide councillors with regular updates on all 

operational activity by way of the weekly councillor e-newsletter. This will 
include any appropriate updates from sector bodies or the local authority 
(e.g. press releases/road closure information).  
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



 

 
 

Learning and Development Policy & Procedure 
Adopted by Council 25th September 2015 

Reviewed July 2022 
 

1. Our policy 
 

 
1.1 Leighton-Linslade Town Council is an organisation in which learning is valued. Staff will be 

supported to undertake the learning and development which they need to help them achieve 
and maintain a high standard of performance and all will be given encouragement and 
support to achieve their full potential.  This will allow them to provide a proper level of service 
to the people of Leighton Buzzard and Linslade. 

 

1.2 The council is committed to ensuring employees’ identified priority learning needs are 

met, within budget constraints and service requirements, and that the council’s workforce 

development needs analysis is aligned with strategic business priorities, service and 

budget planning procedures and timeframes. 

 

1.3 Time for learning, in whatever format it takes, will be allocated and protected to ensure 

that our organisation meets its learning and development needs, this is essential to 

ensure that our workforce is competent to deliver our services in the best way possible, 

and in accordance with statutory and regulatory requirements. 

 

1.4 Learning and development opportunities are open to all employees in line with the 

council’s equality in employment procedure. 

 
2. The purpose of this procedure 
 

2.1 The procedure sets out the conditions to be followed and applies to all council 

employees  
 

3. Roles and responsibilities 
 

3.1 Managers are responsible for:  

 identifying learning and development needs
 ensuring the provision of personal development plans (within personal 

performance assessment process or separately, if required)
 evaluating learning outcomes in relation to the original identified needs

 

3.2 All training will be considered according to priority, budget availability and 

operational capacity to release individuals for training. 

 

3.3 Managers should ensure that all employees have fair and equal access to learning 

and development activity, and must allow ‘protected’ learning time. 

 

3.4 Managers must ensure their teams complete all corporate mandatory training. 

 Page 13



 

3.5 Managers and employees will assess the most appropriate way of meeting 

identified learning outcomes, ensuring that a variety of activities are considered in 

addition to traditional training courses, (see paragraph 5.2).  

 

3.6 Employees are responsible for:  

 identifying their own learning and development needs with their manager
 having regular discussions about their progress with their line manager, applying 

their learning to improve performance/productivity

 committing to undertaking and completing any allocated training to the best of their 

ability within the agreed timescale
 

 

4. Identifying, meeting and evaluating learning needs 
 

4.1 Identify learning needs  

Individual learning needs may come from: 
 

 changes to job requirements
 SMART objectives
 under performance
 career development aspirations
 professional requirements and standards or having to perform an existing role more 

effectively or efficiently

 behavioural development in line with the Council’s core competencies
 

Learning needs may be about developing knowledge, skills, improving behavioural 

competency, or achieving a required qualification for the role - It’s essential to identify 

the need before seeking potential solutions. 

 

4.2 The council is willing to consider personal learning and development opportunities which 

may not necessarily be directly linked to an employee’s role, if a discernible benefit to 

the council can be identified and appropriate budgetary resources are available.  
 

4.3 Identify possible solutions 
 

There are various methods of development including courses, on the job learning, 

coaching, mentoring, research, project work, E-learning, distance learning, reading 

books or journals such as sector-specific publications, attending conferences and 

events. 

 

4.4  Before engaging external providers, always fully consider solutions which are already 

available, including those in the above paragraph, or which may be developed. 
 
 

4.5  Evaluate learning 
 

Managers are expected to review all learning activities with employees following 

development events and plan how learning will be transferred into the employee’s day to 

day work or practice - consider whether or not the learning objectives were met and 

evaluate the overall quality and cost effectiveness of the learning solution. 
 

5    Learning fees and expenses 
 

5.1 Learning “fees” are the financial costs paid by the council for the course or training. 

For most training courses of up to 3 days duration or up to a cost of £1,000 which 

meet identified learning needs as set out in section 4, the Council will meet the costs 

in full.  

Page 14



 

3 

 

  

5.2 In accordance with Financial Regulations and procedures, employees may be required to 

seek up to 3 quotations for appropriate training to ensure best value. Exceptions will apply  

to very specific training for which there may be limited providers or where the council has 

entered into a preferential agreement with a specific provider.   

 

5.3 Learning “expenses” are intended to compensate employees for costs they actually incur by 

attending learning activities - they are initially paid by employees, and then claimed back 

from the council using the claim form for mileage, travel and/or subsistence expenses. 
 

Claims for the following may be made with prior agreement from your line manager: 
 

 travelling to training
 food (if this is not included in the course fee and if the employee is required to leave 

home before 7am or will not return home until after 7pm)
 hotels/accommodation and overnight expenses
 “out of pocket expenses”
 equipment and stationery
 books

 
Remember - you need to obtain and keep receipts. 

 

6. Training records 
 

6.1 Completion of training events, e-learning modules, qualification modules or awards, 

informal development activities such as shadowing and secondments and attendance at 

external conferences or seminars should all be recorded as part of your continued 

professional development. Please provide a scanned in or photocopied copy of any 

relevant documents such as proof of attendance and certificates of completion.  
 

Remaining sections of this policy apply to learning and development courses which are 
of longer than 3 days duration or exceed a cost of £1,000.  
 

7. Funded courses 
 

7.1 A funding agreement may be required to be completed and signed when the council is 

being asked to contribute funds towards fees for any learning activities. The decision as 

to whether to apply a funding agreement is that of the Town Clerk or, if/when they feel it is 

appropriate, with the Personnel Sub-Committee.  

 

7.2 Managers should ensure that the funding agreement is completed, signed, scanned and 

emailed, before an employee starts the training or qualification

 

7.3 Support may be financial (full or partial), or time, or a combination of both - provision of one 
type of support is not a guarantee of the other.  Claims can be made for: 

 

 course tuition fees
 registration fees
 assessment fees
 verification of QCF awards or modules
 exam fees
 cost of joining professional bodies as a student, where this is a requirement for the 

employee to undertake the programme Page 15



 

4 

 

(once the course is complete, the Council may consider continuing to pay fees 

associated with personal membership of professional bodies where considered 

appropriate; the decision on this rests with the Town Clerk).
 

However, if the council is paying for a course, managers must ensure that the employee 

has the appropriate resources to complete it, either at home or in the workplace. 
 

7.4 The Town Clerk will approve funding agreement requests fairly, consistently and 

objectively. 
 

Decisions should be based on: 
 

 the level of priority 
 the amount of support the employee has had in the past and whether they successfully 

completed their learning
 the employee’s personal performance assessment rating
 the ring fenced service training budget available

 

7.5 Continuing assistance under this scheme, e.g. a second year of study or a second attempt 

at an examination will only be granted if the council has evidence of satisfactory progress 

being made. 
  

7.6 A single application is required for an individual undertaking any recognised qualification, 

the council will commit to fund the complete course subject to the candidate making 

satisfactory progress. 
 

 

8. Employee responsibilities 
 

8.1 Attend the learning on the days and at the times necessary and complete any course work 

as required - employees must inform their manager and training provider straight away, if 

they can’t do this for any reason on any occasion. 

 

8.2 Keep their line manager informed of their progress and anything that might affect their 

ability to complete - their manager is fully entitled to contact the course training provider 

to discuss progress. 

 

8.3 Repay the training fees if required to do so, where they fail to honour all or part of any 
funding agreement. 

 

9. Repaying financial support 
 

9.1 In the following circumstances the council may ask employees to pay back some or all of 

the financial support provided. 

 

9.2 Employees leaving the council during their period of study may be required to refund all 

training fees to the date of their leaving, and these may be deducted from the employee’s 

final salary. 

 

9.3 Employees leaving the council within two years of completing the course and the 

qualification being confirmed may be required to pay back the council for the costs 

associated with the course on a monthly pro rata basis, e.g.: 
 

Page 16



 

5 

 

 an employee leaves having completed 2 months of service, the balance of 22/24ths of 

the total cost must be repaid

 an employee leaves having completed 18 months of service, the balance of 6/24ths of 

the total cost must be repaid

 

9.4 Employees not leaving the council, who decide they can no longer continue with a 

financially supported course/learning, may be required to pay back the council. 

 

9.5 The final decision in respect of a requirement to repay fees is that of the Town Clerk, who 

may seek the guidance of the Personnel Sub-Committee if required.  

 

10. Exemptions 
 

10.1 In the following circumstances, the council will not ask employees to pay back all or some 

of the financial support provided:  

 Ill health retirement
 Death in service
 Redundancy other than through the voluntary separation scheme, or organisational 

change
 On a TUPE transfer of service

 

11. Paid time off and study leave 
 

11.1 Where an employee is undertaking an approved qualification programme, the Town 

Clerk may grant reasonable paid time off to attend workshops, lectures and/or seminars, 

and to sit examinations. 

 

11.2 Up to three days study leave per learning year may be granted for the purposes of 

preparing for exams, producing assignments or portfolios, or for other course work - each 

study leave day taken must be matched by a day’s annual leave from the employee’s 

current leave entitlement. This may be best achieved by matching a half day of annual 

leave with a half day of study leave on up to six occasions or on three occasions a day of 

annual leave followed or preceded with a day of study leave. Study leave should be 

requested through the Council’s Compassionate and Special Leave procedure.  

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18


	Agenda
	6 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	7 DELEGATED DECISIONS
	RECORD OF APPROVED DECISIONS Apr 2022

	8 TRAINING POLICY REVIEW
	draft Councillor Learning & Development policy 2022
	Jul 2022 draft Learning-and-development-procedure


